

CHAPTER 417

GOVERNMENT - STATE

SENATE BILL 08-206

BY SENATOR(S) Shaffer and Penry, Bacon, Kester, Morse, Sandoval, Tapia, Tochtrop, Veiga, Boyd, Keller, Tupa, and Windels; also REPRESENTATIVE(S) Carroll T. and Marostica, Gardner B., Jahn, Levy, Liston, Looper, Madden, Marshall, Massey, McFadyen, Pommer, Riesberg, Rose, Summers, Swalm, White, Carroll M., Ferrandino, Garza-Hicks, Judd, Kerr A., Labuda, McGihon, Middleton, Roberts, and Stafford.

AN ACT

CONCERNING THE AUTHORITY OF THE STATE TO ENTER INTO LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENTS, AND, IN CONNECTION THEREWITH, AUTHORIZING LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENTS FOR A STATE JUSTICE CENTER AND A NEW COLORADO STATE MUSEUM, INCREASING CIVIL COURT FEES TO PAY COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE STATE JUSTICE CENTER PROJECT, AND AUTHORIZING TRANSFERS AND PAYMENTS FROM THE PORTION OF THE STATE HISTORICAL FUND NOT RESERVED FOR THE STATEWIDE GRANT PROGRAM TO PAY FOR THE COLORADO STATE MUSEUM, AND MAKING AN APPROPRIATION THEREFOR.

Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Colorado:

SECTION 1. Legislative declaration. (1) State justice center. The general assembly finds that:

(a) It is in the best interest of the state to consolidate into one efficient and cost-effective building the judicial and legal offices of the state presently located in various public and private buildings throughout the Denver metropolitan area, including the Colorado supreme court, the Colorado court of appeals, the administrative offices of the Colorado judicial department, the Colorado department of law, the alternate defense counsel, the office of the child's representative, and the office of the state public defender, referred to in this section 1 as "justice-related offices";

(b) The current state judicial building located at 2 East 14th Avenue, Denver, Colorado 80203, is overcrowded and unsafe. As a result, the state has had to lease private office space in various locations in the Denver metropolitan area. Currently, there are seven state justice agencies located in ten separate offices, the lease rates and space needs for which are projected to continue to escalate.

Capital letters indicate new material added to existing statutes; dashes through words indicate deletions from existing statutes and such material not part of act.

(c) The physical design of the current state judicial building lacks adequate safety and security measures and, thus, is a safety and health concern;

(d) Section 4 of article VI of the state constitution requires that terms of the Colorado supreme court be held at the "seat of government". The site at Fourteenth avenue and Lincoln street is the best available site for a state justice center and would maintain the supreme court location at the "seat of government".

(e) The source of funding for the cost of the state justice center should be from moneys currently being paid for leasing space in other office buildings for justice-related offices, from moneys generated by increases in civil case filing fees in state courts, and from such other sources as the general assembly may deem appropriate;

(f) Consolidation of justice-related offices into a centrally located state justice center building is expected to result in the following financial benefits to the state of Colorado:

(I) The state can replace privately owned, leased space with state-owned and -operated space at a state justice center;

(II) The state can avoid ongoing payments for the rent, operation, maintenance, and remodeling costs related to the current justice-related office locations; and

(III) The state will achieve greater programmatic efficiencies and decrease operating costs by eliminating duplicative expenses resulting from multiple justice-related office locations;

(g) It is therefore in the best interests of the citizens of Colorado to authorize the state of Colorado, acting by and through the state court administrator, to enter into a lease-purchase agreement and other agreements as necessary to finance construction of a state justice center.

(2) **Colorado state museum.** The general assembly finds that:

(a) The state has entrusted to the state historical society the responsibility to educate its citizens, safeguard and preserve the state's heritage, and survey and study all sites and structures in Colorado it deems to have historical interest or importance;

(b) It is in the best interests of the state to construct a new cost-effective and cost-efficient Colorado state museum for the state historical society to perform its responsibilities as a state educational institution that preserves, studies, and restores historical sites and objects important to the state's history, architecture, archeology, and culture;

(c) The current Colorado state museum located at 1300 Broadway, Denver, Colorado 80203, is overcrowded, unsafe, and outdated and lacks adequate space to appropriately preserve and display objects of historical significance to Coloradans;

(d) Renovation of the current Colorado state museum is not economically feasible due to design and space constraints;

(e) The physical design of the current Colorado state museum lacks adequate security measures and, thus, is a safety and health concern;

(f) The source of funding for the cost of the new Colorado state museum should be from moneys in the state historical fund and such other sources as the general assembly may deem appropriate, including transfers from the judicial department to pay for displacement and relocation expenses;

(g) Relocation of the Colorado historical society offices into a new Colorado state museum building, to be centrally located near the state capitol complex, is expected to result in the following financial benefits to the state of Colorado:

(I) The state can construct a new state justice center at the current location of the Colorado state museum that will result in significant cost savings;

(II) The state can avoid continuing to pay for the operating, maintenance, and remodeling costs related to the current Colorado state museum;

(III) The state will gain efficiencies from maintaining a centralized location for the Colorado state museum and the Colorado historical society offices and will avoid making lease payments to private entities; and

(IV) The state will achieve greater programmatic efficiencies and decrease operating costs by eliminating duplicative expenses resulting from multiple office locations;

(h) It is therefore in the best interests of the citizens of Colorado to authorize the state of Colorado, acting by and through the president of the state historical society, to enter into a lease-purchase agreement and other related agreements as necessary to finance construction of a new Colorado state museum.

SECTION 2. Lease-purchase agreement - state justice center. (1) (a) The state of Colorado, acting by and through the state court administrator, is authorized to execute lease-purchase agreements for up to thirty-eight years to finance the design, construction, relocation, and interim accommodation of facilities for a state justice center, to be known as the "Ralph L. Carr Justice Complex". The total amount of the principal component of said lease-purchase agreements shall not exceed two hundred seventy-five million dollars (\$275,000,000), plus reasonable and necessary administrative, monitoring, and closing costs and interest. The maximum annual aggregate rentals or other payments under all lease-purchase agreements authorized by this section from state funds shall not exceed nineteen million dollars (\$19,000,000).

(b) It is the intent of the general assembly that the facilities for which lease-purchase agreements are authorized by paragraph (a) of this subsection (1) shall initially include the following:

(I) The state supreme court;

(II) The state court of appeals;

- (III) The administrative offices of the state judicial department;
- (IV) The department of law;
- (V) The alternate defense counsel;
- (VI) The office of the child's representative; and
- (VII) The office of the state public defender.

(c) Enactment of this act shall satisfy the requirements of sections 24-82-102 (1) (b) and 24-82-801, Colorado Revised Statutes, which require authorization of a lease-purchase agreement by a bill other than an annual general appropriation bill or a supplemental appropriation bill.

(2)(a) The state of Colorado, acting by and through the state court administrator, may, at the state court administrator's sole discretion, enter into one or more lease-purchase agreements authorized by subsection (1) of this section with any for-profit or nonprofit corporation, trust, or commercial bank as a trustee, as lessor.

(b) The lease-purchase agreements authorized in subsection (1) of this section shall provide that all of the obligations of the state under the agreements shall be subject to the action of the general assembly in annually making moneys available for all payments thereunder. The agreements shall also provide that the obligations shall not be deemed or construed as creating an indebtedness of the state within the meaning of any provision of the state constitution or the laws of the state of Colorado concerning or limiting the creation of indebtedness by the state of Colorado and shall not constitute a multiple fiscal-year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation of the state within the meaning of section 20 (4) of article X of the state constitution. In the event the state of Colorado does not renew any of the lease-purchase agreements authorized in subsection (1) of this section, the sole security available to the lessor shall be the property that is the subject of the nonrenewed lease-purchase agreement.

(c)(I) The lease-purchase agreements authorized in subsection (1) of this section may contain such terms, provisions, and conditions as the state court administrator, acting on behalf of the state of Colorado, may deem appropriate, including all optional terms; except that the lease-purchase agreements shall specifically authorize the state of Colorado or the state judicial department to:

(A) Receive fee title to all real and personal property that is the subject of the lease-purchase agreements on or prior to the expiration of the terms of the lease-purchase agreements; and

(B) Reduce the term of the lease through prepayment of rental and other payments.

(II) Any title to such property received by the state on or prior to the expiration of the terms of the lease-purchase agreements shall be held for the benefit and use of the state judicial department.

(d) The lease-purchase agreements authorized in subsection (1) of this section may provide for the issuance, distribution, and sale of instruments by the lessor evidencing rights to receive rentals and other payments made and to be made under the lease-purchase agreements. The instruments may be issued, distributed, or sold only by the lessor or any person designated by the lessor and not by the state. The instruments shall not create a relationship between the purchasers of the instruments and the state or create any obligation on the part of the state to the purchasers. The instruments shall not be notes, bonds, or any other evidence of indebtedness of the state within the meaning of any provision of the state constitution or the law of the state concerning or limiting the creation of indebtedness of the state and shall not constitute a multiple fiscal-year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation of the state within the meaning of section 20 (4) of article X of the state constitution.

(e) Interest paid under the lease-purchase agreements authorized in subsection (1) of this section, including interest represented by the instruments, shall be exempt from Colorado income tax.

(f) The state of Colorado, acting through the state court administrator, is authorized to enter into ancillary agreements and instruments as are deemed necessary or appropriate in connection with the lease-purchase agreements, including but not limited to ground leases, easements, or other instruments relating to the real property on which the facilities are located.

(3) The provisions of section 24-30-202 (5) (b), Colorado Revised Statutes, shall not apply to the lease-purchase agreements authorized in subsection (1) of this section or any ancillary agreement entered into pursuant to paragraph (f) of subsection (2) of this section. Any provision of the fiscal rules promulgated pursuant to section 24-30-202 (1) and (13), Colorado Revised Statutes, that the state controller deems to be incompatible or inapplicable with respect to said lease-purchase agreements or any such ancillary agreement may be waived by the controller or his or her designee.

SECTION 3. Lease-purchase agreement - Colorado state museum.

(1) (a) The state of Colorado, acting by and through the president of the state historical society, is authorized to execute lease-purchase agreements for up to thirty-seven years to finance the design, construction, and relocation of facilities for a state museum. The total amount of the principal component of said lease-purchase agreements shall not exceed eighty-five million dollars (\$85,000,000), plus reasonable and necessary administrative, monitoring, and closing costs and interest. Except for payments from the state museum cash fund, created in section 24-80-214, Colorado Revised Statutes, the maximum annual aggregate rentals or other payments under all lease-purchase agreements authorized by this section from state funds shall not exceed four million nine hundred ninety-eight thousand dollars (\$4,998,000).

(b) The general assembly intends that the facilities for which lease-purchase agreements are authorized by paragraph (a) of this subsection (1) shall include, but need not be limited to, the following:

(I) Storage facilities for state objects and artifacts held in trust;

- (II) The office of the state archaeologist;
- (III) The state museum exhibit halls;
- (IV) The administrative offices of the state historical society;
- (V) The offices of the state historical fund grant program;
- (VI) The state museum classrooms; and
- (VII) The Stephen H. Hart library.

(c) Enactment of this act shall satisfy the requirements of sections 24-82-102 (1) (b) and 24-82-801, Colorado Revised Statutes, which require authorization of a lease-purchase agreement by a bill other than an annual general appropriation bill or a supplemental appropriation bill.

(2) (a) The state of Colorado, acting by and through the president of the state historical society, may, at the president's sole discretion, enter into the lease-purchase agreement authorized by subsection (1) of this section with any for-profit or nonprofit corporation, trust, or commercial bank as a trustee, as lessor.

(b) The lease-purchase agreements authorized in subsection (1) of this section shall provide that all of the obligations of the state under the agreements shall be subject to the action of the general assembly in annually making moneys available for all payments thereunder. The agreements shall also provide that the obligations shall not be deemed or construed as creating an indebtedness of the state within the meaning of any provision of the state constitution or the laws of the state of Colorado concerning or limiting the creation of indebtedness by the state of Colorado and shall not constitute a multiple fiscal-year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation of the state within the meaning of section 20 (4) of article X of the state constitution. In the event the state of Colorado does not renew any of the lease-purchase agreements authorized in subsection (1) of this section, the sole security available to the lessor shall be the property that is the subject of the nonrenewed lease-purchase agreement.

(c) The lease-purchase agreements authorized in subsection (1) of this section may contain such terms, provisions, and conditions as the president of the state historical society, acting on behalf of the state of Colorado, may deem appropriate, including all optional terms; except that the lease-purchase agreements shall specifically authorize the state of Colorado to receive title to all real and personal property that is the subject of the lease-purchase agreements on or prior to the expiration of the terms of the lease-purchase agreements. Any title to such property received by the state on or prior to the expiration of the terms of the lease-purchase agreements shall be held for the benefit and use of the state historical society.

(d) The lease-purchase agreements authorized in subsection (1) of this section may provide for the issuance, distribution, and sale of instruments by the lessor evidencing rights to receive rentals and other payments made and to be made under the lease-purchase agreements. The instruments may be issued, distributed, or sold only by the lessor or any person designated by the lessor and not by the state. The

instruments shall not create a relationship between the purchasers of the instruments and the state or create any obligation on the part of the state to the purchasers. The instruments shall not be notes, bonds, or any other evidence of indebtedness of the state within the meaning of any provision of the state constitution or the law of the state concerning or limiting the creation of indebtedness of the state and shall not constitute a multiple fiscal-year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation of the state within the meaning of section 20 (4) of article X of the state constitution.

(e) Interest paid under the lease-purchase agreements authorized in subsection (1) of this section, including interest represented by the instruments, shall be exempt from Colorado income tax.

(f) The state of Colorado, acting through the president of the state historical society, is authorized to enter into ancillary agreements and instruments as are deemed necessary or appropriate in connection with the lease-purchase agreements, including but not limited to purchase agreements, inter-governmental agreements, ground leases, easements, or other instruments relating to the real property on which the facilities are located.

(3) The provisions of section 24-30-202 (5) (b), Colorado Revised Statutes, shall not apply to the lease-purchase agreements authorized in subsection (1) of this section or any ancillary agreement entered into pursuant to paragraph (f) of subsection (2) of this section. Any provision of the fiscal rules promulgated pursuant to section 24-30-202 (1) and (13), Colorado Revised Statutes, that the state controller deems to be incompatible or inapplicable with respect to said lease-purchase agreements or any such ancillary agreement may be waived by the controller or his or her designee.

SECTION 4. Part 2 of article 80 of title 24, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended BY THE ADDITION OF A NEW SECTION to read:

24-80-214. State museum cash fund. THERE IS HEREBY CREATED IN THE STATE TREASURY THE STATE MUSEUM CASH FUND, REFERRED TO IN THIS SECTION AS THE "CASH FUND". THE CASH FUND SHALL CONSIST OF ALL MONEYS TRANSFERRED TO THE CASH FUND FROM THE STATE HISTORICAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 12-47.1-1201 (5), C.R.S.; MONEYS TRANSFERRED FROM THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (b), C.R.S.; AND ANY OTHER MONEYS APPROPRIATED TO THE CASH FUND BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY. MONEYS IN THE CASH FUND SHALL BE SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY TO THE STATE HISTORICAL SOCIETY TO PAY FOR THE PLANNING, DESIGN, ACQUISITION, AND CONSTRUCTION OF AND RELOCATION TO A NEW STATE MUSEUM, AND EXHIBITS FOR THE MUSEUM. APPROPRIATIONS FROM THE CASH FUND SHALL REMAIN AVAILABLE TO THE STATE HISTORICAL SOCIETY FOR A PERIOD OF FOUR YEARS. ANY MONEYS IN THE CASH FUND NOT EXPENDED FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS SECTION MAY BE INVESTED BY THE STATE TREASURER AS PROVIDED BY LAW. ALL INTEREST AND INCOME DERIVED FROM THE INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT OF MONEYS IN THE CASH FUND SHALL BE CREDITED TO THE CASH FUND. ANY UNEXPENDED AND UNENCUMBERED MONEYS REMAINING IN THE CASH FUND AT THE END OF A FISCAL YEAR SHALL REMAIN IN THE CASH FUND AND SHALL NOT BE CREDITED OR TRANSFERRED TO THE GENERAL FUND OR ANOTHER FUND.

SECTION 5. 12-47.1-1201 (5), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended BY THE ADDITION OF A NEW PARAGRAPH to read:

12-47.1-1201. State historical fund - administration - legislative declaration - state museum cash fund - repeal. (5) (d) (I) THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY FINDS AND DECLARES THAT:

(A) TO BETTER PRESERVE, STUDY, AND RESTORE HISTORICAL SITES AND OBJECTS THROUGHOUT THE STATE, IT IS IN THE BEST INTEREST OF THE STATE TO CONSTRUCT A NEW COLORADO STATE MUSEUM AND OFFICES FOR THE STATE HISTORICAL SOCIETY; AND

(B) CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW COLORADO STATE MUSEUM AND OFFICES FOR THE STATE HISTORICAL SOCIETY WILL PROVIDE IMPROVED HISTORIC PRESERVATION, EDUCATION, PLANNING, AND INTERPRETATION OF COLORADO'S HERITAGE, INCLUDING THE IDENTIFICATION, EVALUATION, STUDY, AND MARKING OF BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, OBJECTS, SITES, OR AREAS IMPORTANT IN THE HISTORY, ARCHITECTURE, ARCHEOLOGY, OR CULTURE OF THE STATE; THE OFFICIAL DESIGNATION OF SUCH PROPERTIES AS APPROPRIATE FOR PRESERVATION; AND OTHER ACTIVITIES DESCRIBED IN PARAGRAPHS (c) AND (d) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION.

(II) THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY REAFFIRMS ITS INTENT THAT:

(A) THE MAJORITY OF THE EIGHTY PERCENT PORTION OF THE STATE HISTORICAL FUND ADMINISTERED BY THE SOCIETY SHALL CONTINUE TO BE USED FOR THE STATEWIDE GRANTS FOR HISTORIC PRESERVATION PURPOSES AS DESCRIBED IN SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION AND MAY ALSO BE USED TO PAY THE ADMINISTRATIVE COST OF THE SOCIETY IN ADMINISTERING THE GRANT PROGRAM; AND

(B) COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE NEW COLORADO STATE MUSEUM SHALL BE FROM THE PORTION OF THE STATE HISTORICAL FUND NOT RESERVED FOR THE STATEWIDE GRANT PROGRAM FOR PRESERVATION, OR FROM OTHER MONEYS AS DESIGNATED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY.

(III) ON OR BEFORE OCTOBER 1, 2008, THE STATE TREASURER SHALL TRANSFER FROM THE STATE HISTORICAL FUND TO THE STATE MUSEUM CASH FUND CREATED PURSUANT TO SECTION 24-80-214, C.R.S., THE SUM OF THREE MILLION DOLLARS. ON OR BEFORE OCTOBER 1, 2009, THE STATE TREASURER SHALL TRANSFER FROM THE STATE HISTORICAL FUND TO THE STATE MUSEUM CASH FUND THE SUM OF FOUR MILLION DOLLARS. ON OR BEFORE OCTOBER 1, 2010, THE STATE TREASURER SHALL TRANSFER FROM THE STATE HISTORICAL FUND TO THE STATE MUSEUM CASH FUND THE SUM OF FOUR MILLION DOLLARS.

(IV) FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING ON JULY 1, 2011, AND FOR EACH FISCAL YEAR THEREAFTER THROUGH THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING ON JULY 1, 2045, SO LONG AS THERE ARE PAYMENTS DUE ON AN AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 3 OF SENATE BILL 08-206, AS ENACTED AT THE SECOND REGULAR SESSION OF THE SIXTY-SIXTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY SHALL APPROPRIATE TO THE STATE HISTORICAL SOCIETY FROM THE STATE

HISTORICAL FUND AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE ANNUAL AGGREGATE RENTALS OR OTHER PAYMENTS DUE FROM STATE FUNDS; EXCEPT THAT THE AMOUNT SHALL NOT EXCEED FOUR MILLION NINE HUNDRED NINETY-EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS IN ANY GIVEN FISCAL YEAR.

SECTION 6. 13-4-112, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

13-4-112. Fees of the clerk of court of appeals. (1) (a) Within the time allowed or fixed for transmission of the record, the appellant shall pay to the clerk of the court of appeals a docket fee of ~~one hundred fifty~~ TWO HUNDRED TWENTY-THREE dollars.

(b) The docket fee for the appellee shall be ~~seventy-five~~ ONE HUNDRED FORTY-EIGHT dollars to be paid upon the entry of appearance of the appellee. ~~On and after July 1, 2007, the docket fee shall be increased by five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5).~~

(2) (a) ~~Except as otherwise provided in subsection (1) of this section, fees received by the clerk of the court of appeals shall be deposited as provided in section 13-2-119 and shall be used for the purpose specified in section 13-2-120. EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:~~

(I) ONE HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE SUPREME COURT LIBRARY FUND CREATED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-2-120;

(II) FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6); AND

(III) SIXTY-EIGHT DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(b) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (b) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) SEVENTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE SUPREME COURT LIBRARY FUND CREATED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-2-120;

(II) FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6); AND

(III) SIXTY-EIGHT DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

SECTION 7. 13-32-101, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended, WITH THE RELOCATION OF PROVISIONS, to read:

13-32-101. Docket fees in civil actions - judicial stabilization cash fund - support registry fund created - repeal. (1) At the time of first appearance in all civil actions and special proceedings in all courts of record, except in the supreme court and the court of appeals, and except in the probate proceedings in the district court or probate court of the city and county of Denver, and except as provided in subsection ~~(2)~~ (3) of this section and in sections 13-32-103 and 13-32-104, there shall be paid in advance the total docket fees, as follows:

(a) ~~ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, by the petitioner in a proceeding for dissolution of marriage, legal separation, or declaration of invalidity of marriage and by the petitioner in an action for a declaratory judgment concerning the status of marriage, prior to July 1, 2003, a fee of ninety dollars and, on or after July 1, 2003, a fee of one hundred thirty dollars; fifteen dollars of such fee shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the Colorado children's trust fund, created in section 19-3-5-106, C.R.S., and, for fiscal years 2002-03 and 2003-04, the remainder shall be transmitted to the state general fund. On and after July 1, 2004, but prior to July 1, 2006, the remaining one hundred fifteen dollars of the fee shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the family stabilization services fund, created in section 19-1-125, C.R.S.; and, on and after July 1, 2006, the remaining one hundred fifteen dollars of the fee shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the performance-based collaborative management incentive cash fund created in section 24-1.9-104, C.R.S.; and, on and after March 18, 2003, the docket fee shall be increased by forty-five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section. On and after July 1, 2007, the docket fee shall be increased by five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section. TWO HUNDRED TWENTY DOLLARS;~~

~~(a.5) Repealed.~~

(b) ~~(H) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, by the respondent in a proceeding for dissolution of marriage, legal separation, or declaration of invalidity of marriage and by the respondent to an action for a declaratory judgment concerning the status of marriage, prior to July 1, 1997, a fee of forty dollars and, on or after July 1, 1997, a fee of forty-five dollars, and, on and after March 18, 2003, the docket fee shall be increased by twenty-five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section. On and after July 1, 2007, the docket fee shall be increased by five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section. ONE HUNDRED SIX DOLLARS;~~

~~(H) On and after July 1, 2010, all fees collected under this paragraph (b) shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section.~~

(c) (I) Except as provided in subparagraph ~~(H)~~ (IV) of this paragraph (c):

(A) On and after July 1, ~~1992~~ 2008, by each plaintiff, petitioner, third-party plaintiff, and party filing a cross claim or counterclaim, when a money judgment sought is fifteen thousand dollars or less and such action is commenced in a court of record of appropriate limited jurisdiction, a fee in the amount of ~~thirty~~ EIGHTY dollars. ~~and~~

(B) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, by each defendant, respondent, third-party defendant, or other party in such court not filing a cross claim or counterclaim, WHEN A MONEY JUDGMENT SOUGHT IS FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS OR LESS AND SUCH ACTION IS COMMENCED IN A COURT OF RECORD OF APPROPRIATE LIMITED JURISDICTION, a fee in the amount of ~~twenty-six~~ SEVENTY-FIVE dollars. ~~and, on and after March 18, 2003, the docket fee shall be increased by fifteen dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section. On and after July 1, 2007, the docket fee shall be increased by nine dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section.~~

(C) THIS SUBSECTION (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2009.

(II) EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN SUBPARAGRAPH (IV) OF THIS PARAGRAPH (c):

(A) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, BY EACH PLAINTIFF, PETITIONER, THIRD-PARTY PLAINTIFF, AND PARTY FILING A CROSS CLAIM OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHEN A MONEY JUDGMENT SOUGHT IS FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS OR LESS AND SUCH ACTION IS COMMENCED IN A COURT OF RECORD OF APPROPRIATE LIMITED JURISDICTION, A FEE IN THE AMOUNT OF EIGHTY-SEVEN DOLLARS.

(B) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, BY EACH DEFENDANT, RESPONDENT, THIRD-PARTY DEFENDANT, OR OTHER PARTY IN SUCH COURT NOT FILING A CROSS CLAIM OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHEN A MONEY JUDGMENT SOUGHT IS FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS OR LESS AND SUCH ACTION IS COMMENCED IN A COURT OF RECORD OF APPROPRIATE LIMITED JURISDICTION, A FEE IN THE AMOUNT OF EIGHTY-TWO DOLLARS.

(C) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (II) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(III) EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN SUBPARAGRAPH (IV) OF THIS PARAGRAPH (c):

(A) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, BY EACH PLAINTIFF, PETITIONER, THIRD-PARTY PLAINTIFF, AND PARTY FILING A CROSS CLAIM OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHEN A MONEY JUDGMENT SOUGHT IS FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS OR LESS AND SUCH ACTION IS COMMENCED IN A COURT OF RECORD OF APPROPRIATE LIMITED JURISDICTION, A FEE IN THE AMOUNT OF NINETY-SEVEN DOLLARS.

(B) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, BY EACH DEFENDANT, RESPONDENT, THIRD-PARTY DEFENDANT, OR OTHER PARTY IN SUCH COURT NOT FILING A CROSS CLAIM OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHEN A MONEY JUDGMENT SOUGHT IS FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS OR LESS AND SUCH ACTION IS COMMENCED IN A COURT OF RECORD OF APPROPRIATE LIMITED JURISDICTION, A FEE IN THE AMOUNT OF

NINETY-TWO DOLLARS.

(C) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (III) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

~~(H)~~ (IV) The general assembly hereby declares that docket fees for actions filed in the small claims division of the county court should reflect the range of the monetary jurisdictional limit established for such actions and that such fees should promote access to the courts and reflect appropriate contributions from litigants using the court system based on the money judgment sought in an action. The general assembly hereby declares that it is appropriate to establish docket fees for the small claims division of the county court as follows:

(A) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, when the money judgment sought by the plaintiff in an action filed in the small claims division of the county court is five hundred dollars or less, a plaintiff shall pay a fee of ~~nine~~ THIRTY-ONE dollars. ~~and a defendant filing an answer without a counterclaim in such an action shall pay a fee of five dollars and, on and after March 18, 2003, the docket fee for a plaintiff or defendant shall be increased by five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section.~~

(B) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, WHEN THE MONEY JUDGMENT SOUGHT BY THE PLAINTIFF IN AN ACTION FILED IN THE SMALL CLAIMS DIVISION OF THE COUNTY COURT IS FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS OR LESS, A DEFENDANT FILING AN ANSWER WITHOUT A COUNTERCLAIM IN SUCH AN ACTION SHALL PAY A FEE OF TWENTY-SIX DOLLARS.

~~(B)~~ (C) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, when the money judgment sought in an action filed in the small claims division of the county court exceeds five hundred dollars and is no more than seven thousand five hundred dollars, a plaintiff shall pay a fee of ~~twenty-three~~ FIFTY-FIVE dollars. ~~and a defendant filing an answer without a counterclaim in such an action shall pay a fee of fifteen dollars; and, on and after March 18, 2003, the docket fee for a plaintiff shall be increased by fifteen dollars, and the docket fee for a defendant shall be increased by ten dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increases shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section.~~

(D) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, WHEN THE MONEY JUDGMENT SOUGHT IN AN ACTION FILED IN THE SMALL CLAIMS DIVISION OF THE COUNTY COURT EXCEEDS FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS AND IS NO MORE THAN SEVEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS, A DEFENDANT FILING AN ANSWER WITHOUT A COUNTERCLAIM IN SUCH AN ACTION SHALL PAY A FEE OF FORTY-ONE DOLLARS.

~~(C) and (D) (Deleted by amendment, L. 2001, p. 1517, § 10, effective September 1, 2001.)~~

(E) **[Formerly subparagraph (1) (c) (III)]** ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, if a defendant files an answer with a counterclaim in an action in the small claims division of the county court AND THE AMOUNT SOUGHT IN THE ACTION AND AMOUNT SOUGHT IN THE COUNTERCLAIM ARE EACH FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS OR LESS, the fee

for such answer and counterclaim shall be ~~ten~~ THIRTY-ONE dollars. ~~unless the amount of the money judgment sought in the complaint or the counterclaim exceeds five hundred dollars and is no more than seven thousand five hundred dollars, in which case, the fee for the answer and counterclaim shall be twenty dollars; and, on and after March 18, 2003, the docket fee for a defendant shall be increased by five dollars, unless the amount of the money judgment sought in the complaint or counterclaim exceeds five hundred dollars, in which case, the fee shall be increased by ten dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increases shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section.~~

(F) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, IF A DEFENDANT FILES AN ANSWER WITH A COUNTERCLAIM IN AN ACTION IN THE SMALL CLAIMS DIVISION OF THE COUNTY COURT AND THE AMOUNT SOUGHT IN EITHER THE ACTION OR THE COUNTERCLAIM IS MORE THAN FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS AND IS NOT MORE THAN SEVEN THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS, THE FEE FOR SUCH ANSWER AND COUNTERCLAIM SHALL BE FORTY-SIX DOLLARS.

~~(IV) (A) On and after July 1, 2010, all fees collected under subparagraph (I) of this paragraph (c) shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section.~~

~~(B) On and after July 1, 2010, all fees collected under subparagraphs (II) and (III) of this paragraph (c) shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section.~~

(d) ~~(I) (A)~~ ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, by each plaintiff, petitioner, third-party plaintiff, and party filing a cross claim or counterclaim filed in a district court of the state, a fee of ~~ninety dollars and, by each appellant, a fee of fifty dollars; by an appellee and by each defendant or respondent not filing a cross claim or counterclaim, prior to July 1, 1997, a fee of forty dollars and, on or after July 1, 1997, a fee of forty-five dollars; and, on and after March 18, 2003, the docket fee by each plaintiff, petitioner, third-party plaintiff, and party filing a claim, a cross claim, or a counterclaim in a district court of the state shall be increased by forty-five dollars, the docket fee for each appellant shall be increased by twenty-five dollars, and the docket fee for each appellee and for each defendant or respondent not filing a cross claim or counterclaim shall be increased by twenty-five dollars; and the additional revenue generated by such increases shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section~~ TWO HUNDRED TWENTY-FOUR DOLLARS;

~~(B) On and after July 1, 2007, each docket fee described in sub-subparagraph (A) of this subparagraph (I) shall be increased by fifteen dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section.~~

~~(H) On and after July 1, 2010, all fees collected under this paragraph (d) shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section.~~

(e) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, BY EACH APPELLANT, A FEE OF ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-THREE DOLLARS;

(f) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, BY AN APPELLEE AND BY EACH DEFENDANT OR RESPONDENT NOT FILING A CROSS CLAIM OR COUNTERCLAIM, A FEE OF ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-EIGHT DOLLARS;

(g) **[Formerly paragraph (1) (f)]** ~~(f)~~ ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, by a petitioner in adoption proceedings, a fee of ~~ninety dollars; and, on and after March 18, 2003, the docket fee shall be increased by forty-five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section. On and after July 1, 2007, the docket fee shall be increased by eight dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section~~ ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-SEVEN DOLLARS.

~~(H) On and after July 1, 2010, all fees collected under this paragraph (f) shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section.~~

(2) **[Formerly subsection (5)]** ~~(a)~~ ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, in any proceeding held pursuant to articles 5, 10, 11, 13, and 14 of title 14, C.R.S., where a decree or final or permanent order has been entered and more than sixty days have passed, there shall be assessed at the time of filing a motion to modify, amend, or alter said decree or order a fee of ~~twenty~~ ONE HUNDRED FIVE dollars. ~~and, on and after March 18, 2003, the docket fee shall be increased by seventy dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section. On and after July 1, 2007, the docket fee shall be increased by five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section.~~

~~(b) On and after July 1, 2010, all fees collected under this subsection (5) shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection (1.5) of this section.~~

(3) (a) **[Formerly paragraph (1) (e)]** NOTWITHSTANDING THE PROVISIONS OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION, if parties appear jointly, only one fee shall be charged or paid, and no fee shall be charged in any event for the filing of a disclaimer, or for an acknowledgment of service for the purpose of conferring jurisdiction, or for an appearance or answer filed by a guardian ad litem, or by an attorney appointed by the court to represent and protect the interest of any defendant.

(b) **[Formerly subsection (2)]** ~~(a)~~ (I) No docket fee shall be charged in mental health proceedings under article 10 or 10.5 of title 27, C.R.S.; but, where an estate is thereafter probated for any mental incompetent, the committing court has a claim against such estate, as a cost of the mental health proceedings, in the sum of twenty dollars, in addition to any other expense of commitment allowed and paid by the

county, to be paid by the conservator of such estate as a claim pursuant to section 15-14-429, C.R.S.

~~(b)~~ (II) On and after July 1, 2009, all claims of twenty dollars that are paid to and collected by the committing court under SUBPARAGRAPH (I) OF this ~~subsection (2)~~ PARAGRAPH (b) shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in subsection ~~(1.5)~~ (6) of this section.

(c) **[Formerly subsection (3)]** No docket fee shall be charged in proceedings concerning dependent or neglected children, relinquishment of children, or delinquent children.

(4) (a) In a civil case in which there is a contested trial to the court or a trial to a jury and a monetary judgment rendered which is paid in whole or in part in cash or other property, there shall be assessed, against the judgment debtor, by the clerk of the court an additional fee as provided in paragraph (b) of this subsection (4). This additional fee shall be paid to the clerk of the district court upon request for full or partial satisfaction of judgment and before the certificate of satisfaction of judgment is issued.

(b) The additional fee to be paid by the judgment debtor, as provided in paragraph (a) of this subsection (4), is as follows:

(I) Judgments over \$5,000 and not more than \$10,000, a total additional fee of \$10;

(II) Judgments over \$10,000 and not more than \$20,000, a total additional fee of \$30;

(III) Judgments over \$20,000 and not more than \$30,000, a total additional fee of \$50;

(IV) Judgments over \$30,000 and not more than \$50,000, a total additional fee of \$90;

(V) Judgments over \$50,000, \$90 plus an additional fee of \$2 for each \$1,000 above \$50,000.

(5) (a) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COLORADO CHILDREN'S TRUST FUND, CREATED IN SECTION 19-3.5-106, C.R.S.;

(II) ONE HUNDRED FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE PERFORMANCE-BASED COLLABORATIVE MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 24-1.9-104, C.R.S.;

(III) FIFTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION;

(IV) FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204;

(V) TWENTY-SIX DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION;

(VI) ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.;

(VII) THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE VITAL STATISTICS RECORDS CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 25-2-121, C.R.S.; AND

(VIII) FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE DISPLACED HOMEMAKER FUND CREATED IN SECTION 8-15.5-108, C.R.S.

(b) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (b) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, FORTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, THIRTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND TWENTY-SIX DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, SEVENTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND TWENTY-SIX DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(c) (I) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (A) OF SUBPARAGRAPH (I) OF PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND THIRTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TWENTY-FOUR DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION, AND ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.

(II) THIS PARAGRAPH (c) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2009.

(d) (I) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (B) OF SUBPARAGRAPH (I) OF PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL

BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND, TWENTY-SIX DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TWENTY-FOUR DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (A) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(II) THIS PARAGRAPH (d) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(e) (I) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (A) OF SUBPARAGRAPH (II) OF PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND THIRTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TWENTY-FOUR DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, TWENTY-SEVEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION, AND ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.

(II) THIS PARAGRAPH (e) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(f) (I) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (B) OF SUBPARAGRAPH (II) OF PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND TWENTY-SIX DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TWENTY-FOUR DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND TWENTY-SEVEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(II) THIS PARAGRAPH (f) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(g) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (A) OF SUBPARAGRAPH (III) OF PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND FIFTY-FOUR DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, THIRTY-SEVEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION, AND ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.

(h) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (B) OF SUBPARAGRAPH (III) OF PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND FIFTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND THIRTY-SEVEN DOLLARS

SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(i) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (A) OF SUBPARAGRAPH (IV) OF PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, NINE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, ELEVEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION, AND ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, FOURTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, ELEVEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION, AND ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.

(j) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (B) OF SUBPARAGRAPH (IV) OF PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND ELEVEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION PARAGRAPH (a) OF (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND ELEVEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(k) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (C) OF SUBPARAGRAPH (IV) OF PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, TWENTY-THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL

STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, ELEVEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION, AND ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, THIRTY-EIGHT DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, ELEVEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION, AND ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.

(I) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (D) OF SUBPARAGRAPH (IV) OF PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND ELEVEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND ELEVEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(m) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (E) OF SUBPARAGRAPH (IV) OF PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND ELEVEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE

JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND ELEVEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(n) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO SUB-SUBPARAGRAPH (F) OF SUBPARAGRAPH (IV) OF PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND ELEVEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, THIRTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND ELEVEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(o) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (d) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, NINETY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, SIXTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, SIXTY-EIGHT DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION, AND ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, ONE HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, SIXTY-EIGHT DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION, AND ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.

(p) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (e) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS

FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, FIFTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, FORTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND SIXTY-EIGHT DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, NINETY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND SIXTY-EIGHT DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(q) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (f) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, FORTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, FORTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND SIXTY-EIGHT DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, EIGHTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND SIXTY-EIGHT DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(r) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (g) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, NINETY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, FIFTY-THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION, ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO

SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S., AND THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE VITAL STATISTICS RECORDS CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 25-2-121, C.R.S.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, ONE HUNDRED FORTY-THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION, ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S., AND THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE VITAL STATISTICS RECORDS CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 25-2-121, C.R.S.

(s) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO SUBSECTION (2) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, SEVENTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION, AND TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, NINETY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SUBSECTION (6) OF THIS SECTION AND TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (7) OF THIS SECTION.

~~(6) On May 28, 2002, the state treasurer shall transfer to the general fund the balance of moneys remaining after the repeal of the support registry fund, formerly created in paragraph (a.5) of subsection (1) of this section, which repeal was effective January 1, 2001. [Formerly subsection (1.5)]~~ There is hereby created in the state treasury the judicial stabilization cash fund, referred to in this subsection ~~(1.5)~~ (6) as the "fund", that shall consist of all fees required to be deposited in the fund. The moneys in the fund shall be subject to annual appropriation by the general assembly for the expenses of trial courts in the judicial department. Any moneys in the fund not expended for the purpose of this subsection ~~(1.5)~~ (6) may be invested by the state treasurer as provided in section 24-36-113, C.R.S. All interest and income derived from the investment and deposit of moneys in the fund shall be credited to the fund. Any unexpended and unencumbered moneys remaining in the fund at the end of any fiscal year shall remain in the fund and shall not be credited or transferred to the general fund or any other fund.

~~(7) (a) Pursuant to section 13-1-204 (1) (b), a five-dollar surcharge shall be assessed and collected on each docket fee that is described in paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), and (f) of subsection (1) of this section concerning civil actions filed on and after July 1, 2007.~~ THERE IS HEREBY CREATED IN THE STATE TREASURY THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND, REFERRED TO IN THIS SUBSECTION (7) AS THE "FUND", THAT

SHALL CONSIST OF ALL FEES REQUIRED BY LAW TO BE DEPOSITED IN THE FUND AND ANY LEASE PAYMENTS RECEIVED BY THE JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT FROM AGENCIES OCCUPYING THE STATE JUSTICE CENTER. THE MONEYS IN THE FUND SHALL BE SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY FOR THE EXPENSES RELATED TO THE DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, MAINTENANCE, OPERATION, AND INTERIM ACCOMMODATIONS FOR THE STATE JUSTICE CENTER, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO PAYMENTS ON ANY LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENTS ENTERED INTO PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 2 OF SENATE BILL 08-206, AS ENACTED AT THE SECOND REGULAR SESSION OF THE SIXTY-SIXTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY, COLLECTIVELY REFERRED TO IN THIS SUBSECTION (7) AS "LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENTS". ANY MONEYS IN THE FUND NOT EXPENDED FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS SUBSECTION (7) MAY BE INVESTED BY THE STATE TREASURER AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 24-36-113, C.R.S. ALL INTEREST AND INCOME DERIVED FROM THE INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT OF MONEYS IN THE FUND SHALL BE CREDITED TO THE FUND. ANY UNEXPENDED AND UNENCUMBERED MONEYS REMAINING IN THE FUND AT THE END OF ANY FISCAL YEAR SHALL REMAIN IN THE FUND AND SHALL NOT BE CREDITED OR TRANSFERRED TO THE GENERAL FUND OR ANY OTHER FUND.

(b) (I) THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY HEREBY FINDS AND DECLARES:

(A) THE STATE JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT IS IN NEED OF ADDITIONAL SPACE;

(B) THE STATE MUSEUM AND THE OFFICES OF THE STATE HISTORICAL SOCIETY OCCUPY A BUILDING ON THE SAME BLOCK AT FOURTEENTH AVENUE AND BROADWAY AS THE CURRENT OFFICES OF THE COLORADO SUPREME COURT, THE COLORADO COURT OF APPEALS, AND THE SUPREME COURT LIBRARY;

(C) BY BUILDING A NEW FACILITY ON THE ENTIRE BLOCK AT FOURTEENTH AVENUE AND BROADWAY, THE JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT WILL CONSOLIDATE ITS OFFICES INTO A SINGLE LOCATION AND THE STATE JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT WILL OPERATE MORE EFFICIENTLY AND COST-EFFECTIVELY; AND

(D) IT IS APPROPRIATE FOR THE JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT TO PAY THE STATE MUSEUM AND THE STATE HISTORICAL SOCIETY FOR ITS BUILDING AND FOR VACATING ITS CURRENT LOCATION AT FOURTEENTH AVENUE AND BROADWAY AND TO ASSIST IN RELOCATION EXPENSES SO THAT THE ENTIRE BLOCK IS AVAILABLE FOR USE BY THE STATE JUDICIAL DEPARTMENT.

(II) NOTWITHSTANDING THE PROVISIONS OF PARAGRAPH (a) OF THIS SUBSECTION (7):

(A) FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING JULY 1, 2008, AS MONEYS BECOME AVAILABLE IN THE FUND, THE STATE TREASURER SHALL TRANSFER FROM THE FUND TO THE STATE MUSEUM CASH FUND, CREATED IN SECTION 24-80-214, C.R.S., ALL MONEYS IN THE FUND UP TO FIFTEEN MILLION DOLLARS.

(B) FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING JULY 1, 2009, AS MONEYS BECOME AVAILABLE IN THE FUND, THE STATE TREASURER SHALL TRANSFER FROM THE FUND TO THE STATE MUSEUM CASH FUND ALL MONEYS IN THE FUND UP TO TEN MILLION DOLLARS.

(C) FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING JULY 1, 2010, AS MONEYS BECOME AVAILABLE IN THE FUND, THE STATE TREASURER SHALL TRANSFER FROM THE FUND TO THE STATE MUSEUM CASH FUND ALL MONEYS IN THE FUND UP TO THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN TWENTY-FIVE MILLION DOLLARS AND THE AMOUNT OF MONEYS TRANSFERRED FROM THE FUND TO THE STATE MUSEUM CASH FUND PURSUANT TO SUB-SUBPARAGRAPHS (A) AND (B) OF THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (II) FOR THE FISCAL YEARS COMMENCING JULY 1, 2008, AND JULY 1, 2009.

(c) (I) FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING JULY 1, 2014, AND EACH FISCAL YEAR THEREAFTER SO LONG AS THERE ARE ANY PAYMENTS DUE UNDER ANY LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENTS, THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PERSONNEL AND ADMINISTRATION SHALL CALCULATE THE NET SAVINGS TO THE STATE BY LOCATING THE DEPARTMENT OF LAW AND ANY OTHER EXECUTIVE BRANCH AGENCY IN THE NEW STATE JUSTICE CENTER.

(II) FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING JULY 1, 2014, AND EACH YEAR THEREAFTER SO LONG AS THERE ARE PAYMENTS DUE ON ANY LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENTS, THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY SHALL APPROPRIATE FROM THE GENERAL FUND TO THE FUND THE AMOUNT OF SAVINGS CALCULATED BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PERSONNEL AND ADMINISTRATION PURSUANT TO SUBPARAGRAPH (I) OF THIS PARAGRAPH (c). ANY MONEYS RECEIVED IN THE FUND PURSUANT TO THIS PARAGRAPH (c) SHALL BE USED TO PREPAY ANY OBLIGATIONS DUE PURSUANT TO ANY LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENT.

SECTION 8. 13-32-102, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

13-32-102. Fees in probate proceedings - repeal. (1) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, for services rendered by judges and clerks of district or probate courts in all counties of the state of Colorado in proceedings had pursuant to articles 10 to 17 of title 15, C.R.S., the following fees shall be charged:

(a) Docket fee at the time of filing first papers in any decedent's estate eligible for summary administrative procedures under section 15-12-1203, C.R.S., or in any small estate of a person under disability qualifying under section 15-14-118, C.R.S., which estates involve no real property. \$ ~~25.00~~ 68.00

(b) Docket fee at time of filing first papers in any estate not coming within the provisions of paragraph (a) of this subsection (1). ~~90.00~~ 164.00

(c) Additional fee payable by petitioner at time of filing petition for supervised administration of a decedent's estate pursuant to sections 15-12-501 and 15-12-502, C.R.S., except for contested claims. ~~90.00~~ 163.00

(d) Docket fee to be paid by the claimant prior to hearing on any contested claim, which fee shall be taxed by the district or probate court in the same manner as costs in civil actions. ~~90.00~~ 163.00

(e) Registration fee for registration of trust pursuant to article 16 of title 15, C.R.S. ~~90.00~~ 163.00

(f) Docket fee at time of filing first papers in each action relating to a

trust. ~~90.00~~ 164.00

(g) Nonrefundable fee for any demand for notice filed pursuant to section 15-12-204, C.R.S.. ~~25.00~~ 30.00

(h) A fee to be paid by the testator at the time of depositing a will with the court during the testator's lifetime pursuant to section 15-11-515, C.R.S. ~~10.00~~ 15.00

(2) Repealed.

~~(3) On and after March 18, 2003, for services rendered by judges and clerks of district or probate courts in all counties of the state of Colorado in proceedings had pursuant to articles 10 to 17 of title 15, C.R.S., the fees shall be increased as follows, and the revenue generated by the increases shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5):~~

~~(a) Docket fee at the time of filing first papers in any decedent's estate eligible for summary administrative procedures under section 15-12-1203, C.R.S., or in any small estate of a person under disability qualifying under section 15-14-118, C.R.S.; which estate involves no real property. \$ 15.00~~

~~(b) Docket fee at the time of filing first papers in any estate not coming within the provisions of paragraph (a) of this subsection (3). 45.00~~

~~(c) Additional fee payable by petitioner at the time of filing a petition for supervised administration of a decedent's estate pursuant to sections 15-12-501 and 15-12-502, C.R.S., except for contested claims. 45.00~~

~~(d) Docket fee to be paid by the claimant prior to hearing on any contested claim; which fee shall be taxed by the district or probate court in the same manner as costs in civil actions. 45.00~~

~~(e) Registration fee for registration of a trust pursuant to article 16 of title 15, C.R.S. 45.00~~

~~(f) Docket fee at the time of filing first papers in each action relating to a trust. 45.00~~

(4) Pursuant to section 13-1-204 (1)(b), a five-dollar surcharge shall be assessed and collected on each fee that is described in subsections (1) and (3) of this section concerning filings made on and after July 1, 2007:

(5) (a) On and after July 1, 2007, the fees described in paragraphs (a) to (f) of subsection (3) of this section shall be increased by eight dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5):

(b) On and after July 1, 2009, all fees collected under this section, except the fees collected under paragraph (h) of subsection (1) of this section, shall be transmitted

~~to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5):~~

~~(c) On and after July 1, 2010, the fees collected under paragraph (h) of subsection (1) of this section shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5):~~

(6) (a) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TWENTY-THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, FORTY-EIGHT DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(b) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (b) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, NINETY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, FIFTY-THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a), AND ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, ONE HUNDRED FORTY-THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a), AND ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.

(c) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, NINETY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, FIFTY-THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, ONE HUNDRED FORTY-THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(d) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (d) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, NINETY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, FIFTY-THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, ONE HUNDRED FORTY-THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(e) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (e) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, NINETY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, FIFTY-THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, ONE HUNDRED FORTY-THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION

13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(f) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (f) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, NINETY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, FIFTY-THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a), AND ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, ONE HUNDRED FORTY-THREE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a), AND ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.

(g) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (g) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND AND FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6) AND FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204.

(h) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (h) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND AND FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6) AND FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204.

SECTION 9. 13-32-103 (1), (2), (3), (6), and (7), Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended to read:

13-32-103. Docket fees in special proceedings - repeal. (1) (a) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, if an appeal is taken from a judgment of a county court in a criminal matter or from a judgment of a municipal court, the appellant shall pay a docket fee of ~~twenty~~ SEVENTY dollars. ~~and, on and after March 18, 2003, the docket fee shall be increased by ten dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5).~~ Such an appeal shall not be subject to the tax imposed by section 2-5-119, C.R.S., for the use of the committee on legal services. ~~On and after July 1, 2007, the docket fee shall be increased by fifteen dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5).~~

(b) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, all fees collected under this subsection (1) shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5).~~ EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (a) OF THIS SUBSECTION (1) SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, FORTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(2) (a) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, in cases where a motion to dismiss for failure to file a complaint is filed, the defendant shall pay a docket fee of ~~five~~ FIFTY-FIVE dollars. ~~and, on and after March 18, 2003, the docket fee shall be increased by ten dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5).~~ On and after July 1, 2007, the docket fee shall be increased by fifteen dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5).

~~(b) On and after July 1, 2010, all fees collected under this subsection (2) shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5). EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (a) OF THIS SUBSECTION (2) SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:~~

~~(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).~~

~~(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.~~

~~(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, THIRTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).~~

~~(3) (a) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, in cases where a motion to authorize a sale in accordance with the provisions of rule 120, Colorado rules of civil procedure, IS FILED, the applicant shall pay a docket fee of ~~ninety~~ TWO HUNDRED TWENTY-FOUR dollars. and, on and after March 18, 2003, the docket fee shall be increased by forty-five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5). On and after July 1, 2007, the docket fee shall be increased by fifteen dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5).~~

~~(b) On and after July 1, 2010, all fees collected under this subsection (3) shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5). EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (a) OF THIS SUBSECTION (3) SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:~~

~~(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, NINETY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, SIXTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, SIXTY-EIGHT DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a), AND ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.~~

~~(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.~~

~~(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, ONE HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH~~

FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, SIXTY-EIGHT DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a), AND ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.

(6) (a) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, in any supplemental proceeding held pursuant to rule 69, Colorado rules of civil procedure, or rule 369, Colorado rules of county court civil procedure, the judgment creditor, upon commencement of the proceeding, shall pay a docket fee of ~~fifteen~~ SEVENTY dollars. ~~and, on and after March 18, 2003, the docket fee shall be increased by fifteen dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5). On and after July 1, 2007, the docket fee shall be increased by fifteen dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5).~~

(b) ~~On and after July 1, 2010, all fees collected under this subsection (6) shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5).~~ EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (a) OF THIS SUBSECTION (6) SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2010, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, THIRTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2011.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2010, FORTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(7) ~~Pursuant to section 13-1-204 (1) (b), a five-dollar surcharge shall be assessed and collected on each docket fee that is described in subsections (1), (2), (3), and (6) of this section concerning filings made on and after July 1, 2007.~~

SECTION 10. 13-32-104, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

13-32-104. Additional fees of clerks of courts - repeal. (1) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, in addition to the fees provided in sections 13-32-101, 13-32-103, and 13-32-105 (1), the following fees shall be paid to the clerk of the court by the party ordering the same:

(a) For preparing any record on appellate review, or for a copy of any record, proceeding, or paper on file, where the copy is not furnished by the party ordering

the same, thirty cents per folio or seventy-five cents per page for photographic copies;

(b) For issuing and docketing each execution, and for filing the sheriff's return of the same, a fee of ~~fifteen~~ FORTY-FIVE dollars; and, ~~on and after March 18, 2003,~~ the fee shall be increased by ten dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5);

(c) For a certificate of dismissal or no suit pending, a fee of ~~five~~ TWENTY dollars; and, ~~on and after March 18, 2003,~~ the fee shall be increased by five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5);

(d) For a certificate of satisfaction of judgment, a fee of ~~five~~ TWENTY dollars; and, ~~on and after March 18, 2003,~~ the fee shall be increased by five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5);

(e) For taking acknowledgment of any deed or other conveyance, including clerk's certificate thereof, a fee of one dollar;

(f) For certifying a copy of any record, proceeding, or paper on file, a fee of ~~five~~ TWENTY dollars; and, ~~on and after March 18, 2003,~~ the fee shall be increased by five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5);

(g) For preparing and issuing a transcript of judgment, a fee of ~~ten~~ TWENTY-FIVE dollars; except that this fee shall not be charged for a judgment entered pursuant to section 18-1.3-701, C.R.S.; and, ~~on and after March 18, 2003,~~ the fee shall be increased by five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5);

(h) For a certificate of exemplification of any record, proceeding, or paper on file, a fee of ~~five~~ TWENTY dollars; and, ~~on and after March 18, 2003,~~ the fee shall be increased by five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5);

(i) For each service of process attempted pursuant to section 13-6-415, a fee of the actual charge of the United States postal service for certified mail;

(j) For issuing a writ of garnishment, a fee of ~~fifteen~~ FORTY-FIVE dollars for each garnishee named in the writ; and, ~~on and after March 18, 2003,~~ the fee shall be increased by ten dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5);

(k) For issuing a writ of attachment, a fee of ~~twenty-five~~ SIXTY-FIVE dollars. ~~and, on and after March 18, 2003, the fee shall be increased by fifteen dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5).~~

(2) The clerk of the court shall assess a ~~twenty-dollar~~ FIFTY-DOLLAR penalty against any person who issues a check returned for insufficient funds in payment of any court fees. ~~and, on and after March 18, 2003, the fee shall be increased by ten dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5).~~ The penalty provided in this section shall be assessed in addition to any other penalties or interest provided by law. For purposes of this section, the term "insufficient funds" means not having a sufficient balance in account with a bank or other drawee for the payment of a check when presented for payment within thirty days after issue.

(3) (a) ~~On and after July 1, 2007, the docket fees described in paragraphs (b) and (j) of subsection (1) and in subsection (2) of this section shall be increased by ten dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5).~~ EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, THE ENTIRE FEE AMOUNT SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, THE ENTIRE FEE AMOUNT SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6).

(b) ~~On and after July 1, 2007, the docket fees described in paragraphs (c), (d), (f), (g), and (h) of subsection (1) of this section shall be increased by five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5).~~ EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (b) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), AND TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, THIRTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6) AND

TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

~~(c) On and after July 1, 2007, the docket fee described in paragraph (k) of subsection (1) of this section shall be increased by fifteen dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5). EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (c) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:~~

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), AND FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6) AND FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(d) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (d) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), AND FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6) AND FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(e) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (e) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, THE ENTIRE FEE AMOUNT SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, THE ENTIRE FEE AMOUNT SHALL BE DEPOSITED

IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6).

(f) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (f) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), AND FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6) AND FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(g) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (g) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), AND FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6) AND FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(h) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (h) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), AND FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6) AND FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN

SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(i) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (i) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, THE ENTIRE FEE AMOUNT SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND.

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, THE ENTIRE FEE AMOUNT SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6).

(j) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (j) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), AND TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, THIRTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6) AND TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(k) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (k) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, THIRTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), AND TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, FIFTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6) AND TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

~~(4) On and after July 1, 2009, all fees and penalties collected under this section shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5).~~ EACH PENALTY COLLECTED PURSUANT TO

SUBSECTION (2) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(a) (I) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), AND TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(II) THIS PARAGRAPH (a) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(b) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, FORTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6) AND TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

SECTION 11. 13-53-106 (1), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

13-53-106. Fees. (1) (a) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, any person filing a foreign judgment shall pay to the clerk of the court ~~ninety~~ ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-SIX dollars. ~~and, on and after March 18, 2003, the fee shall be increased by forty-five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5). On and after July 1, 2007, the docket fee shall be increased by fifteen dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5):~~

(b) Fees for docketing, transcription, or other enforcement proceedings shall be as provided for judgments of the courts of this state.

(c) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (a) OF THIS SUBSECTION (1) SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) NINETY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND;

(II) SIXTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6);

(III) FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a); AND

(IV) ONE DOLLAR SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-5-119, C.R.S.

SECTION 12. 13-71-144, Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

13-71-144. Jury fees to be assessed in civil cases - repeal. (1) (a) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, any party demanding a trial by jury as provided by statute shall pay to the clerk of the court a fee of ~~one hundred~~ ONE HUNDRED NINETY dollars in district court cases ~~and fifty dollars in county court cases~~ at the time the demand is

made pursuant to the Colorado rules of civil procedure. ~~The clerk of the court shall pay the fee, when collected, to the state treasurer for deposit to the credit of the general fund. On and after March 18, 2003, the jury fee in district court shall be increased by fifty dollars, and the jury fee in county court shall be increased by twenty-five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by the increases shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5). On and after July 1, 2007, the jury fee in district court shall be increased by fifteen dollars, and the jury fee in county court shall be increased by nine dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increases shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5). The jury fee is not refundable.~~

(b) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2008, ANY PARTY DEMANDING A TRIAL BY JURY AS PROVIDED BY STATUTE SHALL PAY TO THE CLERK OF THE COURT A FEE OF NINETY-EIGHT DOLLARS IN COUNTY COURT CASES AT THE TIME THE DEMAND IS MADE PURSUANT TO THE COLORADO RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE.

(c) Each party to an action who does not affirmatively waive, in writing, the right to a trial by jury on all issues which are so triable shall pay the jury fee. Failure to pay the jury fee at the time of filing the demand, and no later than ten days after the service of the last pleading directed to any issue triable by a jury, shall constitute a waiver of a jury trial by the demanding, nonpaying party.

~~(2) (a) Pursuant to section 13-1-204 (1) (b), a five-dollar surcharge shall be assessed and collected on each jury fee described in this section concerning civil actions filed on and after July 1, 2007. EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (a) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:~~

~~(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, ONE HUNDRED DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, SIXTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).~~

~~(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.~~

~~(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).~~

~~(b) EACH FEE COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (b) OF SUBSECTION (1) OF THIS SECTION SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:~~

~~(I) (A) PRIOR TO JULY 1, 2009, FIFTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND, THIRTY-FOUR DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL~~

STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND NINE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

(B) THIS SUBPARAGRAPH (I) IS REPEALED, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2010.

(II) ON AND AFTER JULY 1, 2009, EIGHTY-FOUR DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6) , FIVE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE COURT SECURITY CASH FUND ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 13-1-204, AND NINE DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a).

~~(3) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (1) of this section, on and after July 1, 2009, all fees collected under this section shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5).~~

SECTION 13. 37-92-302 (1) (d) and (1) (e), Colorado Revised Statutes, are amended to read:

37-92-302. Applications for water rights or changes of such rights - plans for augmentation. (1) (d) (I) The fee for filing an application, complaint, petition, or any other pleading initiating a water matter shall be the same as that for filing a civil complaint in district court, AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 13-32-101, C.R.S.; except that, for any application seeking a determination of a change of water right or approval of a plan for augmentation, the filing fee shall be twice as much. For filing a statement of opposition, the fee shall be the same as that for filing an answer to a civil action in district court. A tax of one dollar must be included with every application, pursuant to section 2-5-119, C.R.S. No fee or tax shall be assessed to the state of Colorado or any agency of its executive department under this subsection (1) or subsection (3) of this section, but no other person or entity shall be exempt from such fee or tax.

~~(II) On and after July 1, 2010, All fees collected under this paragraph (d) shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5), C.R.S. AND BE DIVIDED AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 13-32-101, C.R.S.~~

~~(e) Pursuant to section 13-1-204 (1) (b), C.R.S., a five-dollar surcharge shall be assessed and collected on each fee described in paragraph (d) of this subsection (1) concerning water matters initiated on and after July 1, 2007.~~

SECTION 14. 37-92-304 (2), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

37-92-304. Proceedings by the water judge. (2) Within twenty days after the date of mailing thereof, any person, including the state engineer, who wishes to protest or support a ruling of the referee shall file in writing a pleading in quadruplicate with the water clerk and shall mail or deliver a copy to all parties and so certify. Such pleading shall clearly identify the matter and shall state the factual and legal grounds therefor. Upon filing of such a pleading, the party, except for the

state engineer who shall pay no filing fee, shall pay a filing fee equal to that for filing an answer to a civil action in district court, AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 13-32-101, C.R.S. No person who is already a party in the matter may be required to file any additional pleading or to pay any additional filing fee to maintain a party status in the case. ALL FEES COLLECTED PURSUANT TO THIS SUBSECTION (2) SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND BE DIVIDED AS PROVIDED IN SECTION 13-32-101, C.R.S.

SECTION 15. 37-92-401 (5), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

37-92-401. Biennial tabulations of priorities and decennial abandonment lists. (5) (a) Any person who wishes to protest the inclusion of any water right in a decennial abandonment list after its revision by the division engineer shall file a written protest with the water clerk and with the division engineer. All such protests to the decennial abandonment list shall be filed not later than June 30, 1992, or the respective tenth anniversary thereafter. Such protest shall set forth in detail the factual and legal basis therefor. Service of a copy of the protest or any other documents is not necessary for jurisdictional purposes, but the water judge may order service of a copy of the protest or any other document on any person and in any manner which he or she may deem appropriate. The fee for filing such protest with the water clerk shall be ~~twenty~~ FORTY-FIVE dollars. ~~and, on and after March 18, 2003, the fee shall be increased by ten dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5), C.R.S. On and after July 1, 2007, the docket fee shall be increased by five dollars, and the additional revenue generated by such increase shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 (1.5), C.R.S.~~

(b) FEES COLLECTED PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (a) OF THIS SUBSECTION (5) SHALL BE TRANSMITTED TO THE STATE TREASURER AND DIVIDED AS FOLLOWS:

(I) TWENTY DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE GENERAL FUND;

(II) FIFTEEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUDICIAL STABILIZATION CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (6), C.R.S.; AND

(III) TEN DOLLARS SHALL BE DEPOSITED IN THE JUSTICE CENTER CASH FUND CREATED IN SECTION 13-32-101 (7) (a), C.R.S.

SECTION 16. 8-2-121 (2), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

8-2-121. Document fraud - penalties. (2) Any person or entity that violates subsection (1) of this section shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than fifty thousand dollars recoverable, with attorney fees and costs, in a civil action that may be brought by the office of the attorney general on behalf of the department of labor and employment, for each document subject to the violation. Moneys collected pursuant to this subsection (2) shall be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 ~~(1.5)~~ (6), C.R.S. The moneys in the judicial stabilization cash fund shall be subject to annual appropriation by the general assembly to the office of the attorney general for costs incurred for actions brought

pursuant to this section. In the event that the judicial stabilization cash fund is abolished, the moneys collected pursuant to this subsection (2) shall be deposited in the general fund, which shall then be subject to annual appropriation by the general assembly to the office of the attorney general for costs incurred for actions brought pursuant to this section.

SECTION 17. 13-32-105 (1)(c), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

13-32-105. Docket fees in criminal actions. (1) (c) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (b) of this subsection (1), on and after July 1, 2008, all fees collected under this section shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 ~~(1.5)~~ (6).

SECTION 18. 13-32-109 (2), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

13-32-109. Report of unclaimed funds - district court. (2) On and after July 1, 2010, all moneys paid to the state treasurer pursuant to subsection (1) of this section shall be deposited in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 ~~(1.5)~~ (6).

SECTION 19. 13-32-112 (2), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

13-32-112. Unclaimed funds - county court. (2) On and after July 1, 2010, all fees required to be paid over by the clerk into the state general fund pursuant to subsection (1) of this section shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 ~~(1.5)~~ (6).

SECTION 20. 16-4-109 (6), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

16-4-109. Disposition of security deposits upon forfeiture or termination of bond. (6) On and after July 1, 2008, all moneys collected from payment toward a judgment entered for the state pursuant to subsection (2) of this section shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 ~~(1.5)~~ (6), C.R.S.

SECTION 21. 18-1.3-701 (1) (b), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

18-1.3-701. Judgment for costs and fines. (1) (b) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (c) of this subsection (1), on and after July 1, 2010, all judgments collected pursuant to this section for fees and court costs shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 ~~(1.5)~~ (6), C.R.S.

SECTION 22. 18-22-103 (2) (a) (II), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

18-22-103. Source of revenues - allocation of moneys. (2) The clerk of the court shall allocate the surcharge required by subsection (1) of this section as follows:

(a) (II) Notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (I) of this paragraph (a), on and after July 1, 2008, the portion of the surcharge that is retained under this paragraph (a) shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 ~~(1.5)~~ (6), C.R.S.

SECTION 23. 18-24-103 (1) (a), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

18-24-103. Collection and distribution of funds - child abuse investigation surcharge fund - creation. (1) The clerk of the court shall allocate the surcharge required by section 18-24-102 as follows:

(a) Five percent shall be retained by the clerk of the court for administrative costs incurred pursuant to this subsection (1). Such amount retained shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 ~~(1.5)~~ (6), C.R.S. ~~and~~

SECTION 24. 24-21-214 (3) (a), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

24-21-214. Surcharge - collection and distribution - address confidentiality program surcharge fund - creation - definitions. (3) The clerk of the court shall allocate the surcharge required by this section as follows:

(a) Five percent shall be retained by the clerk of the court for administrative costs incurred pursuant to this section. Such amount retained shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 ~~(1.5)~~ (6), C.R.S.

SECTION 25. 39-2-125 (1) (h), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

39-2-125. Duties of the board. (1) The board of assessment appeals shall perform the following duties, such performance to be in accordance with the applicable provisions of article 4 of title 24, C.R.S.:

(h) Collect any filing fee that shall accompany a taxpayer's request for a hearing before the board pursuant to this section. All fees collected by the board shall be transmitted to the state treasurer, who shall credit the same to the general fund. Any request for a hearing before the board pursuant to sections 39-2-117 (5) (b), 39-4-108 (8), 39-8-108 (1), and 39-10-114.5 (1) shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable filing fee as follows:

(I) For any person other than a taxpayer pro se, ~~an amount equal to seventy-five percent of the docket fee required to be paid by a plaintiff, petitioner, third-party plaintiff, and a party filing a cross claim or counterclaim in a district court of the state pursuant to section 13-32-101 (1) (d), C.R.S.,~~ A FEE OF ONE HUNDRED ONE DOLLARS AND TWENTY-FIVE CENTS for each tract, parcel, or lot of real property and for each schedule of personal property included in such request; except that, if any request for a hearing before the board involves more than one tract, parcel, or lot owned by the same taxpayer and involves the same issue regarding the valuation of such real property, only one filing fee shall be required for such request for a hearing.

(II) For any person who is a taxpayer pro se, for the first two requests for a hearing within a fiscal year, the taxpayer shall not be required to pay a filing fee, and for each additional request within such fiscal year, ~~an amount equal to seventy-five percent of the docket fee required to be paid by each plaintiff, petitioner, third-party plaintiff, and party filing a cross claim or counterclaim in a court of record of appropriate limited jurisdiction pursuant to section 13-32-101 (1) (c) (I), C.R.S.~~ A FEE OF THIRTY-THREE DOLLARS AND SEVENTY-FIVE CENTS for each tract, parcel, or lot of real property, and for each schedule of personal property included in such request; except that, if any request for a hearing before the board involves more than one tract, parcel, or lot owned by the same taxpayer and involves the same issue regarding the valuation of such real property, only one filing fee shall be required for such request for a hearing.

SECTION 26. 42-4-1710 (4) (a) (I) (B), Colorado Revised Statutes, is amended to read:

42-4-1710. Failure to pay penalty for traffic infractions - failure of parent or guardian to sign penalty assessment notice - procedures. (4) (a) (I) (B) On and after July 1, 2008, all docket fees collected under this subparagraph (I) shall be transmitted to the state treasurer for deposit in the judicial stabilization cash fund created in section 13-32-101 ~~(1.5)~~ (6), C.R.S.

SECTION 27. Appropriation. In addition to any other appropriation, there is hereby appropriated, out of any moneys in the state museum cash fund created in section 24-80-214, Colorado Revised Statutes, not otherwise appropriated, to the department of higher education, for allocation to the state historical society, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2008, the sum of eighteen million dollars (\$18,000,000) cash funds, or so much thereof as may be necessary, for the initial phase of capital construction costs for a new Colorado state museum, including design work and construction.

SECTION 28. Safety clause. The general assembly hereby finds, determines, and declares that this act is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health, and safety.

Approved: June 4, 2008